
STBM Preliminary Budget Hearing 032911 Page 1 
 

SPECIAL TOWN BOARD PRELIMINARY BUDGET HEARING MEETIN G 
PAHRUMP TOWN ANNEX 
270 NORTH HIGHWAY 160 
TUESDAY – March 29, 2011 

6:00 P.M. 
 

MINUTES 
 

PRESENT:        
 Town Board:          

Mike Darby 
Vicky Parker        
Carolene Endersby 
Dr. Tom Waters 
Harley Kulkin 

 
Staff: 

Bill Kohbarger, Town Manager 
Scott Lewis, Chief 
Michael Sullivan, Finance Director 
Al Balloqui, CB & DS Manager 
Matt Luis, Building & Grounds Manager 

 
1. Call to order 
  

Mike Darby called the meeting to order. 
 

2. Discussion and Possible Decision Regarding Fiscal Year 2011-2012 Preliminary Town of 
Pahrump and Pahrump Swimming Pool District Budget.    

  
Michael Sullivan brought and presented the general information sketch of where the Town saw revenues, 
expenditures, and allocations. 
 
Mr. Darby asked what funds the Town consolidated or lost. 
Mr. Sullivan responded that the Fire Capital Fund closed the previous year and that the Town lost the Fall 
Festival fund. 
 
Mr. Sullivan explained the groupings of funds as they were placed in the supplemental material. 
 
Vicky Parker asked about the projected revenue for the Fair Grounds Room Tax. 
Mr. Sullivan replied that the grant fund and regular room tax were what went into the provided amount. 

 
Carolene Endersby asked what the restricted funds were. 
Mr. Sullivan replied they were the special revenue funds that were set up through resolutions by the Board 
which restricted that income by those purposes. Those funds cannot be transferred to the general fund or 
any other special fund unless changed by act of the Board via a resolution. 
 
Mrs. Endersby asked about the $10,000 increase by Pool PACT. 
Mr. Sullivan replied that Pool PACT had said they anticipated a five to six percent premium increase. 
 
A member of the public spoke concerning vehicles. 
 
Mrs. Endersby inquired as to gasoline price increases. 



STBM Preliminary Budget Hearing 032911 Page 2 
 

Mr. Sullivan stated the budget figures are figured by an average and projected trend. 
 

Mr. Darby clarified that the Town was using County tanks. 
 
Bill Dolan, a member of the public and secretary of Pahrump Veteran’s Memorial Advisory Board, 
inquired as to the power costs which include parks. He stated reservations should have additional fees for 
use of power. 
Matt Luis said the Parks and Recs Advisory Board were looking into charging more for reservations which 
included using electricity. 
Mrs. Endersby asked if there were grants the Town could possibly share some of the costs. 
 
Mrs. Parker asked for Mr. Sullivan to put the shade cover for Ian Deutch Memorial Park into the budget for 
the next year. 
 
Mr. Darby inquired as to legal fees in 2009 and 2010. 
Mr. Sullivan stated he didn’t bring with him the over-all fees, but did put the break downs into individual 
funds. 
 
Harley Kulkin inquired as to overtime benefits. 
Mr. Sullivan said overtime is combined with the benefits incurred during overtime. 
 
Mr. Darby spoke of postage meters. 
 
Mrs. Endersby asked about 1500 variants. 
Mr. Sullivan said the specialized clothing needed to be cleaned when a contamination happened. 
 
Mr. Darby asked where the $60,000 from brothels came in. 
Mr. Sullivan replied it was part of the enterprise fund for ambulances. 
 
Mrs. Endersby inquired as to possible staff fees for reservations. 
Mr. Sullivan said staff already takes care of a number of reservations. 
 
There was further conversation and debate concerning charging extra on events with electricity use. 

 
Mrs. Parker asked how the Room Tax Fund had $90,000 allocated in supplies. 
Mr. Sullivan explained that there were only four categories available to put funds into. He said when that 
fund was addressed it would be explained. 
 
Mrs. Endersby said she couldn’t see where $70,000 in room tax funds were. 
Mr. Sullivan said in line six it was put under the grants column for 2011 and two columns over had the 
proposed 2012 funds of $20,000 which were funds we were receiving from CCA under their development 
program. 
 
Mrs. Parker asked why the Town could not use the fuel tax with the inter-governmental agreement on the 
Road Tax Fund with Nye County to pay for the new speed limit signs. 
Mr. Kohbarger responded saying they were looking at talking about this with Nye County. 
 
Bill Dolan said once a veteran’s columbarium in the cemetery went through, revenue would go up as many 
people are holding onto ashes they want to be in the veteran’s area while many others wish to pre-pay for a 
spot. He also asked for information on the contributions toward the cemetery from the Veteran’s Memorial 
Advisory Board. 
Mr. Sullivan said those funds would probably be in the general cemetery fund, but could be moved to the 
veterans’ cemetery fund. 
 
Mr. Kulkin asked if the Town was approaching any deadlines for impact fees, such as Last Chance Park. 
Mr. Sullivan responded that the Town was approaching some deadlines. 



STBM Preliminary Budget Hearing 032911 Page 3 
 

 
Mrs. Endersby and Mr. Kulkin inquired about room tax. 
Mr. Sullivan stated that an 8% room tax is charged and of that, 1% goes to the state who allocates part of 
that back to Pahrump. The Town keeps the other 7%. 
 
Bill Dolan, referencing page two, pointed out that there was an accumulated $2,867,000 funds from fall 
festival, park impact fees, fair grounds, park room tax, and the arena which were not being used and sitting 
stagnant. He suggested these funds be used for a new community center as legislature may take unused 
funds. 
Mrs. Endersby and Mr. Kulkin spoke a little in response to moving forward with these funds, possibly with 
a new community center. 
 
Mr. Darby asked as to the actual budget of 2009. 
Mr. Sullivan said this fund was used to roll through Grant money under the pet program from the County to 
acquire water rights. 
 
No action was taken. 
 

3. Discussion and Possible Decision Regarding Approval of Resolution 2011-06 Approving 
Preliminary 2011-12 Fiscal Year Budgets for Town of Pahrump and Pahrump Swimming Pool 
District.   
 
Mrs. Parker motioned to approve Resolution 2011-06 adopting the Town of Pahrump and the Town 
of Pahrump Swimming Pool District fiscal 2011-12 tentative budgets as contained in the attached 
budget worksheet forms and as amended and direct the finance director to file with such other 
amendments as may be required or directed by the State Department of Taxation by April 15, 2012. 
Mr. Kulkin seconded. 
 
Motion carried, 5-0. 
 

4. Public Comment.  
  
 Public comment was heard. 
 
5. Adjournment. 

  
 Meeting was adjourned by Mr. Darby 
  
 


